The Vytautas the Great War Museum

Audiogide
Welcome to the Vytautas the Great War Museum. This is one of the oldest museums in Lithuania. Its establishment started in 1919 by the initiative of general, physician and archaeologist Vladas Nagevičius. The opening ceremony was celebrated in the Old Russian Orthodox Church and former manège of the 111th Don Infantry Regiment on 16 February 1921 – on the day of the commemoration of Lithuania’s Independence.  The first exhibits were the trophies of the independence battles. Within a short period of time, the War Museum became an important source of the Lithuanian culture. In 1930, the cornerstone of the new building of the museum was consecrated.  The new building, where the War Museum has been operating to this very day, was opened in 1936. It was designed by Vladimiras Dubeneckis and Karolis Reisonas. The crypt to those who lost their lives for the freedom and independence of Lithuania was opened in the museum in 1938 and restored in 1998. The activity of the institution was significantly reorganised by the occupations. However, the activity of the museum as a preserver of the values of the Lithuanian history was restored on 29 January 1990 and it reclaimed the name of Vytautas the Great. In 2006, the rights of the establisher of the museum were taken over by the Ministry of National Defence.
The mission of the Vytautas the Great War Museum is to collect, store and propagate the monuments and exponents of the Lithuanian nation and Lithuanian national battles for freedom and independence that illustrate the history of the Lithuanian military forces, the evolution of weapons and military attributes as well as the values of the material and spiritual culture.  The collection of the museum includes archaeological findings, cold weapons and firearms, ammunition kits that illustrate the development of the Lithuanian national and military history. This is also a place of storage of photo negatives and pictures, collections of uniforms of Lithuanian and foreign military forces, sets of documents and books, exponents telling the story of the flight of Darius and Girėnas across the Atlantic with airplane “Lituanica” in 1933. The expositions of the museum are open not only in this building, but also in the other two branches: Underground Printing-House “ab” and Technique and Transport Department in Vilnius. 
We invite you to explore the expositions displayed in the first and third floor of this building. During the excursion, you will have an opportunity to familiarise with the unique exhibits of the Lithuanian military from the prehistoric times to the present day. In the exposition of the history of weapons, which is situated in the third floor, you will be invited to explore the exhibits that are best reflecting the history of the development of weapons. 
Now let us stop by the uniform identified by audio guide number 1, which is stored on the left of this grand hall. 
(1) Uniform of the Disabled Military Personnel’s Service of the War Museum, 1923-1940
Lithuanian Disabled Soldiers’ Service is an integral part of the history and traditions of the War Museum. The primary and the most solemn duty of the disabled soldiers as the preservers and servants of the museum was the ceremony of the flag raising and lowering in the garden of the War Museum. It was used to pay the honour to the warriors, shooters and partisans who lost their lives or got injured in the battles for the freedom and independence of Lithuania.
The same display case also contains a pike flag.   
(2) Reconstruction of pike flag 
This pike flag of the colours of the flag of the Cross of Vytis was made in accordance with the original of the 1920s – 1930s stored in the museum. It is tailored of the stripes of a synthetic fabric of dark red and black colours and different widths. One side is cut and ends with two “horns”. The other end has the stitched strings to bind the flag to the pike. These flags were used during the ceremonies performed by the disabled soldiers in the garden of the War Museum. 
On the right is the rifle “Berdan No 2”.
(3) Infantry rifle “Berdan No 2“, calibre – 10.75 mm, Russia, 1887
This is the first exhibit of the collection of weapons stored in the War Museum.  It was usually called the “Berdanka”. It was one of the best weapons of the late 19th century. The first model of this rifle was designed by the American Colonel Hirem Berdan in 1868.  He guided the specially assigned shooters during the American Civil War and was the inventor of the parts of firearms. “Berdan No 2” is a single-shot, bolt action rifle. A slightly changed version of this rifle was adapted to the Russian military forces. In the late 1880s, it was replaced by the new generation firearm “Mosin-Nagant”. In 1915-1916, during the First World War, due to the lack of firearms in the Eastern Front, Berdan No 2 rifles were brought back from the warehouses and used to arm the sustainment units of the Russian Army. In the independence battles and during the first years of the peacetime, such firearms were used by the soldiers of the Independent Lithuania Army. 
Now let us move to the archaeology hall, which introduced out visitors to the military skills in the pre-historic Lithuania. The first exhibit is contained in the right display case.
(4) Helmet, the 6th - 7th century
The findings displayed in this hall take us back to the times of the first settlement of the inhabitants in the territory of Lithuania. It is the period from the 11th millennium BC until the 13th century A.D. The defensive walls, weapons and graves that have survived to this day tell the story about the military conflicts that took part in the pre-historic Lithuania. In this part of exposition, the exhibits of the military skills are divided into the three main epochs:  the Stone Age, the Early Metal Era and the Iron Age.
Helmets are sometimes found in the archaeological monuments of the Late Iron Age. Only five such helmets have been found in Lithuania. The museum stores the three helmets and a fragment of one helmet. One of them is an exclusive helmet of the 11th – 12th century that was found in a very rich grave of two horses in the Pakalniškės graveyard, Šakiai District. At that time, helmets were the attribute of the people of the highest social rank only.  The helmet displayed to the visitors is of a shape of cone and made of one sheet of iron. 
The glass display case in the middle of the hall contains a pendant identified by number 5.
(5) Pendant, the 6th – 7th century
This rider-shaped pendant is a unique exhibit and so far the only one in Lithuania. This brass ornament was found in a gravel pit of Didvyčiai, Plungė District, in 1932. According to guesswork, this is an amulet that used to be either bound to the belt or worn on the neck.
You can explore the other exhibits of the pre-historic military skills independently. And now let us return to the grand hall of the museum and then move to the next hall on the left. Here you will find the exposition of the history of military skills in the Grand Duchy of Lithuania. Exhibit number 6 is contained in one of the central display cases. 
(6) Set of the Maximilian armour
This exposition reflects the history of the military skills in the times of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania from 14th to 17th century. A newly formed State of Lithuania was forced to fight for its nationality and resist the attacks of the enemies. In the 14th – 15th century, the weaponry of the Lithuanian soldiers did not differ from that used by the soldiers of surrounding regions. In the 16th century, the army of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania obtained a defined structure. At that time, the institution of the Hetmans, a senior commander of the army, was formed, and the military duty of the dukes was stipulated in the Statute of Lithuania. 
Maximilian armour is the style of Renaissance-era armour made of wavy or groovy plates. The unusual form of this armour was not only the trend of the then fashion, but also served for practical purposes. The waviness provided more durability to the Maximilian armour plates. The weight of the set of amour could amount to up to 30 kilograms. Being very expensive, this armour was usually worn by the aristocrats only. This set of armour is the 19th replica made according to the original armour of the 16th century. 
The next display case contains the Karacena armour. 
(7) Set of Karacena armour, the Polish-Lithuanian Commonwealth, 18th century
Since the early 16th century, the mercenaries from other regions started to serve in the army of the Grand Duchy of Lithuania. Hussars came from the Central Europe, Cossacks – from the Ukrainian steppes, petyhor (Petyhorcy) – from the Caucasian mountain foot area.
In the 17th – 18th century, in the Polish-Lithuanian Commonwealth, the expensive, heavy, representative Karacena armour was worn by the ruler, highest-rank military leaders, hussars, pancerni and petyhor officers. In Poland and Lithuania, such armour became popular during the times of the ruling of John III Sobieski. Certain parts of Karacena armour took the form of the hussar armour. They were decorated with expensive fabrics and various elements of décor. 
Now let us return to the grand hall of the museum. On the left are the articles of porcelain and silver dating the 18th – 19th century. Let us stop by the archaeological findings. We invite you to take a closer look at the cap identified by number 8 of the audio guide. 
(8) Cap, the 3rd century
In 1990, the archaeologists of the Vilnius Pedagogical University investigated the Dauglaukis graveyard in Tauragė District. During the digging works, the grave of a wealthy woman was found. The neck of the deceased was decorated with a brass collar with cone-shaped ends, the hands were decorated with six stripe bracelets and three brass rings, and the head was covered with a wool cap with the entire surface covered by brass plates. The front part was also decorated with spiral pendants of the shape of eye glasses. The leader of expedition, Eugenijus Jovaiša, spent two weeks to assemble the plates of this cap and transferred them on the replica of head. This is the only fully-assembled cap in Lithuania that used to be worn in the Old Iron Age. 
The richest collection displayed in the glass cases is composed of cold weapons. Nearby you can see the paintings hanging on the wall. Let us stop by one of them. It is object number 9.
(9) Karlis Huns. Painting “Vytautas’ daughter Sophia strips the band from Duke Galickis during the crowning ceremony”, 1861
This artwork of the 19th century Latvian painter illustrates the only progeny of the Grand Duke of Lithuania Vytautas – daughter Sophia. In order to strengthen his positions in the Grand Duchy of Moscow, Vytautas forced his daughter to marry the future ruler Vasily I. Sophia had nine children with him.   After the death of her husband, Grand Duchess Sophia of Lithuania was left alone with her minor son – a candidate to the throne of the Grand Duchy of Moscow. Two years after the death of her husband, Sophia passed the ruling of the Grand Duchy of Moscow to Vytautas and the dukes of Moscow had to take a vow to him. After the death of Vytautas, the Grand Duchess began to rule the Grand Duchy of Moscow by herself and fought against the rebellious Russian dukes and was personally leading the Moscow defence against Tartars in 1451. Later she supported the battles for the throne of her son, Vasily II of Moscow. Constant conflicts with inside and outside enemies negatively influenced the ruler's health and she died in 1453. 
The Chapel of Vytautas the Great is situated in the central part of the grand hall. It is sort of enframed by the two paintings – “Vytis” and “The First Troop of Hussars in the Parade”. “Vytis” is object number 10.
(10) Petras Kalpokas. Painting “Vytis”, 1921
This is the first exhibit of the art collection stored in the Vytautas the Great War Museum. The painting illustrates the coat of arms of the Republic of Lithuania that has been formed for a long centuries. During the inter-war period, it helped to revive the memory of the nation that was lost during the occupation and to enhance the belief after the Declaration of Independence on 16 February 1918. 
The author of the painting, Petras Kalpokas, is a Lithuanian painter and professor of the 20th century. He was a member of the Lithuanian Art Society and painted many portraits and thematic compositions, frescoes, theatrical sceneries for several plays of the National Theatre, and wrote the Guide to the Art Technique. His works play an important role in the history of the formation of Lithuanian art identity and are still highly valued. 
Object number 11 is the sculpture of Vytautas the Great displayed in the Chapel.
(11) Vincas Grybas. Sculpture “Vytautas the Great”, 1930s
Gypseous sculpture “Vytautas the Great” was made in 1934. Vytautas the Great was the Grand Duke of Lithuania and the most famous Lithuanian General. He was born in 1350 and died in 1430. In the inter-war Lithuania, Vytautas the Great was one of the main symbols of national revival and historical remembrance. This sculpture was donated to the War Museum by the 2nd infantry division, which bought it from sculptor Vincas Grybas for 3,000 Litas. 
Vincas Grybas is one of the most famous Lithuanian creators of the monumental sculpture of the first half of the 20th century. He was also a well known politician and a public figure.  He was fusilladed by the Nazi in 1941.  Among the most famous works of Vincas Grybas are the monuments to Simonas Daukantas, Vytautas the Great, Žemaitis, Vincas Kudirka and Petras Vileišis. 
The right wall of the Chapel displays the exhibit identified by number 12.
(12) Jan Styka. Painting – “Oath of Vytautas the Great”, 1901
A battle canvas “Oath of Vytautas the Great” was painted by famous Polish painter Jan Styka in Paris, in 1901. Its sketch was drawn in Lithuania, where the painter visited Earl Benedykt Henryk Tyszkiewicz in Raudondvaris Manor.  The painting illustrates the Kaunas Castle in fire in 1362. In the centre of the painting is Vytautas holding a sword in his right hand and a shield in his left hand swearing to take a revenge on the crusaders. 
On the right of the grand hall is the exposition of the Modern-Time military skills. It is composed of two parts. The first, on the right of the Chapel of Vytautas the Great, tells the story of the period from the Lithuanian occupation and annexation in 1940. The display case in the corner contains a larch shrine identified by number 13. 
(13) Larch shrine with surnames of soldiers 
When the Soviet Russia occupied Lithuania in 1940, the local army was destroyed and families of soldiers suffered the crackdown. They were fusilladed, exiled and imprisoned in the concentration camps. This larch shrine with surnames of Lithuanian soldiers reminds us about his painful period in Lithuania’s history. It was brought by the participants of the expedition in Krasnoyarsk region, the cemetery situated on the shore of Lake Lama, in 1990. In the centre of the shrine, under the glass, is a sheet of paper with surnames of Lithuanian exiles written in Russian letters. These are the surnames of 14 high-rank soldiers of the Lithuanian artillery. They were sent to enhance their qualification in Moscow’s Felix Dzerzhinsky Military Academy on 13 June 1941. On 28 June of that same year, they were arrested and brought to the Lama concentration camp, where the soldiers of the occupied Baltic States – Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia – were imprisoned.
And now let us move to the exhibit number 14 – a pole.
(14) Pole with the marks of shots of the Second World War, 1930s
This pole with the marks of the Second World War was found by the employees of the Vytautas the Great War Museum during the expedition in Šakiai District, Trakymai Village, by the entry of Jotija stream – the affluent of Šešupė. In 1930s, this place served as a frontier zone separating the Republic of Lithuania and the German Reich. 
The second part of the exposition of the Modern-Times military skills situated on the opposite side tells the story about the significant events of the restoration of the Lithuanian Army. Let us stop by the last display case of this exposition, which is dedicated to soldier Normundas Valteris.  Here is the exposition of the 2 objects marked by audio guide numbers. 
(15) Bulletproof vest, Denmark, 1995
In 1991, Lithuania joined the United Nations Organisation. The Lithuanian soldiers participated in the peacekeeping missions led by this organisation in various countries. In 1996, Chief Lieutenant Normundas Valteris, the first voluntary establisher of the restored Lithuanian Army, lost his life in Bosnia. After his death, the soldier was awarded with the 2nd class Order of the Cross of Vytis. 
This soldier used to wear this exhibited vest when serving in the composition of the Denmark battalion in the operation of the United Nations Organisation in Croatia. The external side of the vest has an inscription – “N. Valteris”.
(16) 2nd class Order of the Cross of Vytis conferred on Normundas Valteris after his death, 1996 
The Order of the Cross of Vytis was established in 1919 as the highest-rank state award. Among the Lithuanians, the first issue 1st class Order of the Cross of Vytis was conferred on the President Antanas Smetona and General Silvestras Žukauskas.  In 1944 – 1953, this award was bestowed on the Lithuanian guerrillas. After the events of the 13 January 1991, the Supreme Council of the Republic of Lithuania – the Restoration Seimas – adopted the law on the restoration of the Order of the Cross of Vytis on January 15th. The deserving persons have been conferred this award to this present day. 
The expositions of the Modern-Times military skills are sort of separated by the exhibits displayed in the centre.  Let us stop by the automobile “Dodge Four”.
(17) Automobile “Dodge Four”, the United States of America, 1917
This automobile was made in the United States of America, in the factory of Dodge brothers, in 1917.  It was brought to Lithuania in 1920. Later, it was used in one of the state departments for several years. In 1926, this vehicle was purchased for 2,000 Litas in the auction by Jonas Dereškevičius, the school inspector of Kaunas Region. He needed the vehicle to perform his duties when inspecting the schools in the region. Later, when he received a permanent job in Kaunas, he no longer used this vehicle and kept it in his garage until 1973. The members of the Kaunas Old Vehicle Club breathed new life into this “veteran”.
And now let us go up to the third floor of the museum. The door to the stairwell is on the right of the grand hall. In the first hall of the third floor, you will be familiarised with the uprisings of the 19th century. The goal of the Lithuanians who participated in these uprisings was to free themselves from the Russian occupation. The display case on the right of this hall contains the cap of the soldier of the Uhlan Regiment marked by number 18. It reminds us about the Lithuania’s participation in the War of 1812.
(18) Cap of a soldier of 17th Regiment of Lithuanian Uhlans in the French Army, 1812-1813
The formation of the 17th Regiment of Uhlans started on 5 July 1812 by the initiative and funds of Michał Tyszkiewicz.  The men gathered to the points of call that were situated in Biržai, Raseiniai, Telšiai and Panevėžys. The staff of the Regiment operated in Kupiškis. French Emperor Napoleon I appointed Michał Tyszkiewicz to be the leader of the Regiment and awarded him with the Colonel’s degree. 
At the end of 1812, the 17th Regiment of Uhlans together with other Lithuanian units covered the retreat of the French Army and entered the composition of the 10th Corps of the Grand Army. The men of the Regiment were fighting in the French ranks until 1814. After the retirement of the Emperor Napoleon, the Regiment was allowed to return to its homeland with weapons and flags. 
In the exposition “Lithuanian Uprising of 1831”, an exclusive exhibit is painting “Captain of the Rebellions, Countess Emilija Plater”.
(19) Ignas Rudolfas. Portrait “Captain of the Rebellions, Countess Emilija Plater”, 1930s
Emilija Pliater was the daughter of Fransis Xaver Broel Plater and Anna von Moll. She learned how to use a gun at a very young age and was an excellent shooter and a good fencer and was also interested in the history of the Polish-Lithuanian Commonwealth and France. During the Uprising of 1831, she and her cousin Cesar Plater organised the Regiment of 280 shooters and 60 riders in Dusetos region and started to lead them. Later, exhausted by the storms of war, she retreated to Warsaw, however, got ill and died on 23 December 1831. Emilija Plater is called the Lithuanian Joan of Arc. She is also considered the national heroine in Poland as well as in Belarus. 
Object number 20 is a wayside shrine to the remembrance of the Uprising of 1863.
(20) Wayside shrine to the remembrance of the Uprising of 1863, the late 19th century
This oaken wayside shrine was made by the unknown Lithuanian artist. The emergence of these wooden chapels and crosses is related to the suppression and executions suffered during the Uprisings of 1831 and 1863. These remembrance symbols were built either isolated or in groups. Currently, the majority of them are in the Hill of Crosses in Šiauliai District, where such wayside shrines have started to be built since 1831.
Now let’s take a walk to the next hall. In the centre you can see the display case dedicated to the formation of Lithuanian units in Russia in 1917-1919. The uniform of soldier Petras Linkevičius-Kazilionis hanging inside the display case is marked by number 21.
(21) Uniform of Lithuanian soldier Petras Linkevičius-Kazilionis, 1918-1919
In 1917, after the February Revolution in Russian, Lithuanian units started to form in various provinces of the Russian Empire. The soldiers of these units planned to organise the return to their homeland and to contribute to the creation of the Lithuanian Army. The exhibited uniform belonged to soldier Petras Linkevičius-Kazilionis. He was the leader of the first separate Lithuanian Vytautas the Great Battalion in Siberia formed in 1919. At the end of the year, this battalion was dissolved. 
On the left of the hall are the three display cases dedicated to the fights of the Lithuanian Army for the independence in the early 20th century. The first display case contains a manikin illustrating a volunteer of the Lithuanian Army. The stripe on his uniform is marked by number 22. 
(22) Stripe of the uniform of the volunteer of the Lithuanian Army, 1919
One of the first distinctive symbols of the uniforms of Lithuanian soldiers was the triangular stripe of the national flag colours.
At the end of 1918, the Red Army forced its way to Lithuania from the East and threatened to destroy the emerging state. As the formation of army was only in its early stage, the main responsibility laid with the volunteers. At that time, they formed the core of the army. The volunteers used to wear their own distinctive clothes and footwear. The only distinctive mark indicating that these men were fighting for their homeland was the triangular stripe. In order to differentiate the soldier from the spy in disguise, the triangles had a regiment’s seal. In total, approximately 10 thousand persons were recognised as the volunteers of the Lithuanian Army. They sacrificially and bravely fought in the battles and managed to defend their country together with other Lithuanian military forces. 
The same display case contains the exhibit number 23.
(23) Artillery projectile, 1910s 
This artillery projectile symbolises the start of the artillery in the Lithuanian Army. On 27 March 1919, the Panevėžys Security Unit started its operation against the Bolsheviks.  On the 28th of March, the enemies retreated and entrenched in Deltuva Town, Ukmergė District. The team of the 1st battery of the Lithuanian Army bombarded the town. The first projectile hit the parsonage, where the staff of the Bolsheviks’ units was established. The piece of the shrapnel of projectile stuck in the wall of the building. It was the first “christening” of the artillery battle of the Lithuanian Army. When the Lithuanians occupied the town, the parson handed over the unexploded piece of shrapnel projectile to the soldiers. They decontaminated the explosive and handed it over to the War Museum.
A little further is the exposition of objects telling the story about the battles of the First World War. Let us stop by the exhibit number 24.
(24) Sword of Saint George, Russia and Germany, the early 20th century
In the mid-19th century, there was an order established in the Russian Army to manufacture the weapons used for awarding in accordance with a specific model of the army and to golden their hilts. In 1913, the award weapons were related to the Order of Saint George and acquired the name “Weapons of George”. This sword with golden handle belonged to the commander of the 314th Novo Oskol Infantry Regiment of the Russian Army and later to the first Colonel of the Independent Lithuanian Army – Silvestras Žukauskas. On 20-27 July 1915, the unit led by the General was engaged in Šiauliai operation and fought against the German forces in the Central Lithuania covering the retreat of the 5th Russian Army. Silvestras Žukauskas was awarded with the Sword of St. George for his merits in the battles and donated it to the Vytautas the Great War Museum after entering the Army of Independent Lithuania.
Now let us move to the next hall. It contains a memorial exposition dedicated to the flight of Darius and Girėnas across the Atlantic Ocean in 1933. Exhibit number 25 displays the remains of the airplane “Lituanica”.
(25) Remains of fuselage, landing-gear, wings and engine of the airplane “Lituanica”
On 15 July 1933, Lithuanian pilots Steponas Darius and Stasys Girėnas took off in airplane “Lituanica” from New York Floyd Bennett aerodrome, crossed the Atlantic Ocean, however, suffered an accident on the 17th of July and died in the surroundings of former Germany and current Poland’s Pszczelnik territory. The pilots planned to take the route New York - Newfoundland - Atlantic Ocean - Ireland - London - Amsterdam - Swinemünde - Königsberg - Kaunas Airport, however, due to unfavourable weather conditions they were forced to change the route and turned to north near the Ireland and reached Germany via Scotland and the North Sea. The crash occurred due to difficult atmospheric conditions and engine failure only 650 kilometres short of the goal – the homeland. 
Despite the catastrophe, “Lituanica” became the symbol of Lithuanian aviation and the brave pilots who crossed the Atlantic Ocean – became the Lithuanian heroes.  
The exposition displays not only the remains of the aircraft, but also the personal belongings of the pilots found in the crash site. Beyond the glass display case with the remains of the airplane, you can take a closer look at the clothes and footwear of pilot Stasys Girėnas. Let us stop for a while.
(26) Suit of pilot Stasys Girėnas
This restored suit was worn by Stasys Girėnas during his flight across the Atlantic in 1933. When restoring the clothes, 5 bills of the US dollars were found sewed in the pocket of the trousers under the lining. It shows that the pilot was a saver.
Nearby are the clothes of his colleague Steponas Darius.
According to the data of the Governmental Commission, Steponas Darius and Stasys Girėnas were well prepared for the flight across the Atlantic. In July of 1933, their flight with “Lituanica” achieved the second best result in the world in respect of the distance of the flight in a transatlantic route and the fourth best result in respect to the time spent in the air. In the history of world aviation, this flight is mentioned as one of the most precise flights. During this flight, the air-mail was transported to Lithuania from the North America for the first time. 
And now let us move to the exposition “Lithuanian Army in 1920-1940” on the left. The part dedicated to the land-based army contains the liner of the Brigadier Jonas Juodišius and uniform of Mayor Stasys Grinevičius. Please take a closer look at these items.
(27) Cap comforter of Brigadier Jonas Juodišius of the Lithuanian Army Artillery  
This cap comforter of the 1931-model was worn with the outdoor uniform until 1940. Cap comforter belonged to the artillery soldier and later the Brigadier Jonas Juodišius. As a part of a uniform, the cap comforter itself was a true novelty as no other European army had any such head covers at that time. In Lithuania, it was used by the infantry, artillery and military technique soldiers.
(28) Uniform of Administrative Mayor Stasys Grinevičius of the Lithuanian Army Quartermaster’s Office
Such uniforms of the 1934-model were worn by the Lithuanian soldiers from 1934 to 1940. The owner of this uniform, Stasys Grinevičius, handed it over to the museum in 1967. It served as an example when creating the uniforms for the soldiers of the Honour Guard Company and Lithuanian Riflemen’s Union Honour Guard Company. After the elimination of its certain fragments, the everyday uniform was created for the soldiers of land military forces of the Republic of Lithuania.
And now please lift your head up. Exhibit number 29 of our excursion is an aircraft ANBO-I. 
(29) Aircraft ANBO-I, Lithuania, 1925
Single low-wing monoplane trainer ANBO–I is the only one of all aircrafts made by the Lithuanians that has survived during all wars and occupations. Its constructor was the Chief of the Military Aviation of the Lithuanian Army – Brigadier Antanas Gustaitis. 
In 1925, the first flight with this aircraft was conducted by Antanas Gustaitis himself and the last one to fly this plane was Lieutenant Jonas Mikėnas.  In 1935, the aircraft was handed over to a newly established aviation exposition of the War Museum. In 1944, with the start of the second Soviet occupation, ANBO-I (so-called “anbukas”) was placed to the storage and dismantled as it was forbidden to demonstrate the achievements of Independent Lithuania in the museum. The exposition of this airplane was renewed in other museums only in 1970 and a little bit later – in the Vytautas the Great War Museum. 
Now let us move to the exposition of the history of weapons. Here you can take a closer look at the unique exhibits of our museum that best reflect the history of weapons. The first three cold weapons are displayed to your left, in the display case by the wall. 
(30) Small sword, Europe, the 17th – 18th century
The small sword is a weapon similar to rapier and characterised by a straight blade that is narrower than that of a rapier and has a more simple hand guard. Usually it is composed of a knuckle guard and quillon, finger-guard and a shield-guard. This weapon was used for thrusting, therefore, in some cases, it contained no edges. A small sword replaced a rapier and started to be used in the second half of the 17th century already and was mostly used in the 18th century, when it had become a part of the costume of the noble and wealthy people. As a weapon of a soldier, the small sword was used in European armies until the 19th century. 
(31) Sabre kościuszkόwka, the Poland-Lithuania Commonwealth, the late 18th century   
A sabre is a cutting or cutting-thrusting weapon with more or less bent single-edged blade and open or closed hilt.  Different types of sabres and their modifications were formed in different regions. These weapons originated in Asia in the tribes of nomad Turkic people and Mongols in the 4th – 6th century. A century later, sabres began to dominate in the nomad tribes of the Middle Asia and Eastern Europe. The development of sabres in Europe is related to Turkey and Hungary that was under the influence of Turkey and adapted the Turkish sabres and other weapons. 
In the 18th century, in the Polish-Lithuanian Commonwealth, the battle sabre “kościuszkόwka” the name of which originated from the surname of Tadeusz Kościuszko, the general who led the Uprising of 1794, became popular. This weapon was characterised by the features of the Polish sabres. Its hilt was distinguished by a cross-guard passing to the knuckle guard bent in two straight angles and an oval shield-guard. The sabres of this type were used by the soldiers of the infantry, artillery and cavalry of the Polish and Lithuanian armies.
The blade of this sabre kościuszkόwka has engraved decorations and inscriptions dedicated to the Constitution of 3 May 1791. 
(32) Backsword (Palasch) of the line cavalry, France, 1885
A backsword is a weapon characterised by a straight, wide single-edged or double-edged blade and a hilt similar to that of a sword. Due to its shape and purpose of use, a backsword is similar to a sword. The first news on the backsword date the 15th century and its origin is related to the East. Persians, Turks and Hungarians were the first ones to use this weapon. In the West, the cavalrymen used to keep backswords on the left side. Same as a sword, it was used for breaking, cutting hits or for thrusting. In the 16th – 17th century, a hussar backsword with a heavy single-edged or double-edged blade having an open or closed handle and fitted to the saddle was popular and was used by the hussars of Hungary, Poland and Lithuania. With certain changes backswords were used until the 19th century. The display case contains the 1882-model.  
On the right of the last door of the hall is the exposition of the firearms. 
(33) Matchlock musket, calibre – 18 mm, Europe, the 17th century
This musket was used by infantry and dragoons. The first mentioning of the usage of muskets dates the early 16th century. In about 1520, the Spanish redesigned a so-called “arquebus a croc”, a heavy hook-type firearm that was used for shooting from the defensive walls. Instead of a hook they fitted a forquette, which became a support. Since then the weapon could also be used in an open field. 
In the 17th century, along with the development of weapons and accoutrements of the European musketeers, the total length of the matchlock musket amounted to 175 cm and the length of the barrel – up to 130 cm. The weight of musket was reduced down to 5-7 kg. In the 17th century, the dragoons usually used matchlock muskets of the length of up to 150 cm and of the weight of up to 4.5 kg. A forquette was no longer necessary for such a lighter musket. The muskets of dragoons were fitted with the belts to hang the musket on the shoulder. In the 17th century, following the example of the dragoon weapons, the muskets of infantry also became lighter and slightly shorter. Forquettes and supports were also no longer necessary. 
(34) Matchlock arquebus tanegashima, calibre – 11.6 mm, Japan, the second half of the 16th century – the 17th century
The firearms were brought to Japan in 1543 by the Portuguese who first of all anchored in the Tanegashima Island in the south of Kyushu. Arquebuses were one of the main goods delivered to Japan by the Portuguese and later by the Spanish.  In this country, arquebuse started to be called by the name of the island – tanegashima. Having evaluated the advantages of arquebuses and hoping to conquer the enemies by using them, Japanese dukes tried to purchase as many firearms as possible. Despite high import volumes, there was a constant shortage of these firearms, therefore, the dukes started to organise their manufacture. The locally manufactured weapons were of the length of 90-140 cm and usually with the eight-angled barrels, a rear sight and a fore sight. They had matchlocks with spring-lowered serpentine and short stocks.  
(35) Flintlock blunderbuss pistol with folding bayonet, calibre – 23 mm, Great Britain, the early 19th century 
A folding bayonet, a shape of handle and an internal lock allows to attribute this weapon to terceroles. In the late 18th century, before the Western European police forces were widely established, the persons, who were able to purchase guns, used to keep flintlock pistols in their pockets or at home. The pistols replaced small swords – former self-defence weapons of the gentlemen.  Such pistols were usually with a distinctive lock, where the trigger was fitted not on the right as in case of the majority of other flintlock pistols, but in the middle. Such locks were handier than the side ones as it was less likely to stick in the clothes. In some cases, pocket pistols were supplemented with folding bayonets that were fixed into a fighting position by pulling back the guard of the trigger. 
(36) Match-lock rampart gun, calibre – 26 mm, Germany, the late 16th – early 17th century 
Heavy fortress defence hook guns were the special purpose firearms. They were used to shoot from far distances. A higher force, distance and precision of the shot were ensured by the exceptionally long barrels of these guns. The prevalence of fortress defence guns was restricted due to the complex manufacture of long durable barrels and it was inconvenient to load the guns from the muzzle. Same as other muzzle loading guns, their successful loading could be performed by keeping them in as vertical position as possible, stock placed on the ground so that under the influence of gravitation the gunpowder and the bullet would be precisely placed down into the bottom of the barrel. Such rampart guns with long barrels were traditionally used in the defence of towns and castles or in case of a siege. A long-distance and precision of a shot was required when shooting to the enemy commanders and distant essential positions. In the 17th century, the rampart guns were usually fitted with matchlocks, wheellocks ant later flintlocks. Due to the power and precision of shot they were also suitable for hunting. 
(37) Wheellock arquebus, calibre - 14.5 mm, Germany, the mid-17th century
In the late 16th century – 18th century, the firearms with shorter barrels and wheellocks were traditionally called arquebuses in Europe. These weapons had a different shape of the stock. According to the shape of stock it was possible to identify in which region the gun was manufactured. In the 17th century, the German arquebuses with straight, edgy stocks and asymmetrical shoulder stocks were still manufactured and used. On the left they had a wide plane to be placed by the cheek and on the right they had an opening covered by the retractable cover for spare pyrite pieces. In order to withstand the power of the kick, it was necessary to hold these guns as firmly as possible keeping the fingers of the right hand in the special grooves of trigger guard. These guns were used for entertainment to shoot the targets and for the hunting. They were used for these purposes until the very mid-18th century. German arquebuses became popular in the German lands and neighbouring regions of the Central Europe, including Lithuania. 
(38) Infantry flintlock musket, calibre – 19 mm, France, the second half of the 18th century  
Infantry flintlock musket was also called the infantry fusil. Its flintlock was more advantageous than the previous matchlocks and wheellocks. As infantry and cavalry weapon, it became popular in the second half of the 17th century and dominated until the first half of the 19th century. This lock had a cock with a piece of flint pressed in the “jaws” and a striker which were fixed to the plate together with the spring enabling their functioning. In the early flintlocks, the striker and cover of the gunpowder compartment were two separate parts, whereas in the newer versions they were composed a single solid part. The manufacture of flintlocks was not complex. It was more convenient to use such locks than matchlocks and wheellocks. The shots from flintlock muskets were approximately twice faster as compared with the matchlock guns. The main disadvantage of the flintlock was that the gunpowder in the compartment became wet in case of unfavourable weather conditions – rain or snow – therefore, the sparks could not ignite it. In the 17th century, a new French sparking flintlock of a practical construction started to be used and spread universally in the Western World in the 18th century. In the 18th century, the lighter flintlock muskets – fusils – became the main weapons of the infantry. 
(39) Musket with Miquelet lock, calibre – 15.5 mm, North Africa, the 19th century
In the 18th – 19th century, so-called Arabic guns were manufactured in Algeria and Tunis. Such guns had long, narrow and usually non-rifled barrels, stocks made of solid wood and shoulder stocks of the shape of fish tail. Their barrels were usually brought from the European regions. The local Miquelet or so-called Spanish lock was popular in the Mediterranean Sea region. It had a cock with very long lips and a handle on the top, which was necessary to press the flint and bend the cock when shooting. Outside the plate of the lock were a cock spring and a guard. In many cases, such guns had decorative bindings and stocks as well as shoulder stocks decorated with incrustations of metal, bone and semi-precious stones.   
(40) Flintlock pistol, calibre – 17.5 mm, Europe, the late 18th century 
The flintlock pistols were used not only by the army, but also by the civilians. Same as previous wheellock pistols, they supplemented the ordinary cavalry weapons. Two rider’s pistols were kept in holsters on both sides of the front part of the saddle. When approaching the enemy, cavalrymen could shoot from both pistols and later fight by using cold weapons. Flintlock pistols were also used by the infantry officers. Civilians used pistols for self-defence and in duel. Flintlock and later also the capsule combat pistols were used in pairs. Usually they had no sight measures, were sold in cases together with the sets of service and maintenance tools. The barrels of flintlock pistols were even, therefore, the distance of their effective shot usually did not exceed 10 to 20 metres.
(41) Cavalry pistol with Augustin lock, calibre – 17 mm, Austria, 1840s - 1850s 
This is the 1844-model remade of the flintlock pistol. In 1818, after the invention of copper percussion caps in Great Britain, the percussion cap lock of the firearm was manufactured. It was more improved than the flintlock as its functioning was independent of the weather conditions. The loading of the gun was more fast and smooth – the fireman had only to put the new cap. The advantages of guns with percussion locks were soon noticed, therefore, previously manufactured flintlock weapons started to be remade into percussion guns. 
One of the modernised weapons the flintlock of which was remade into a version similar to the percussion lock was the pistol of the 1844-model with Augustin lock used by the Austrian cavalry. Instead of copper percussion cap it used a copper barrel placed into an ignition opening with combustible substance. This barrel was closed with a cover having a sharp-bottomed piston. Hitting the piston, the trigger used to crush the tube where the material was detonated.  In 1840s–1850s, the pistols were modernised in Prussia, Great Britain and Saxony.  The capsule lock provided the old guns with better fighting properties. The need of the improvement of accurateness and increase of the effective distance of the shot led to the manufacture of pistols with rifled barrels. 
(42) Infantry percussion rifle, calibre – 18.5 mm, Great Britain, 1853 
This firearm was remade of the flintlock in London Tower gun factory. 
The percussion lock that was invented and started to prevail in the 19th century provided with the new possibilities to use rifles in the war. They were usually used by extremely skilled shooters in the war. The loading of these guns was complex as the bullet had to be pushed through the entire length of the channel of the rifled barrel. After the hits with the rammer, the bullet expanded and bit into the rifling – the longitudinal grooves on the surface of the channel of barrel. During the shot, the bullet, which was forced to turn around its own axis due to the riflings, remained rotating after flying from the barrel. In this way it could fight the air resistance much better. The bullet could fly much further and keep a straighter pathway and less deviate from the aiming axis. In the first half of the 19th century, some of the strongest European countries raced to equip their armies with rifles. At that time, Great Britain was one of the leading countries in the area of development of firearms. 
(43) “Falis” percussion breech-loading rampart rifle, calibre – 22.6 mm, Belgium or France, 1830s – 1840s
Since the very start of the usage of firearms, the loading of the gun from the muzzle was practised. It was a long and uncomfortable process, especially if it was necessary to load the rifle or long-barrel guns. It was possible to load the gun through the muzzle in a vertical position only.  Due to this reason, in the course of loading, the gun could not be higher than the gunman when in a vertical position. It was necessary to construct breech-loading guns. In the 1820s, “Falis” percussion breech-loading rampart rifle was tested in France. The gun had a rifled barrel and a tiltable rear end of the barrel with a compartment for gunpowder and a bullet. The rear end of the barrel could be opened by pulling the horns upwards. The end of the lock had a lever to lock the rear end and press tightly to the barrel and opened for loading after the shot. This weapon could be loaded in a horizontal position. In 1831, such rampart rifles were used by the French Army. 
(44) “Dreyse” bolt action needle gun, calibre – 15.43, Prussia, 1855-1857
This infantry weapon was made in accordance with the 1841-model. 
In the 1940s, the Prussian Army was the first country in Europe equipped with breech-loaded rifle guns “Dreyse”. These weapons were used to shoot paper cartridges composed of a bullet, gunpowder and a capsule. The gun of the innovative construction designed by constructor Johann Nikolaus von Dreyse became one of the major innovations in the history of firearms. This gun had a tube-shaped sliding bolt with a needle. By pressing the trigger, the long needle driven by the lock mechanism penetrated the gunpowder load and hit the capsule to ignite the gunpowder. The Prussian Army valued the new weapon and tried to keep the construction data confidential, therefore, it was indicated as “a light percussion rifle of the Model 1841” in the documents.  And only 14 years later it was officially named as “a needle gun Model 1841”. 
(45) “Lee-Enfield Mk III*” infantry rifle, Model 1907, calibre – 7.71 mm, Great Britain, 1916
In 1880s and 1890s, the army of Great Britain was equipped with repeating rifles “Lee-Metford MKI” and bolt action “Lee-Metford MKII” and non-removable magazines for 8 and 10 cartridges. The constructions of these guns were developed in time. In 1895, the army of Great Britain started to use the new rifles “Lee-Enfield”. After some improvements of the construction of this gun, in December of 1902, the army started to use rifles “Lee-Enfield” with abbreviation SMLE. The name Short Magazine Lee Enfield means that this model of “Lee-Enfield” rifle is short and has a magazine. Namely these guns and their modifications were the main rifles of the British Army for almost the entire first half of the 20th century. One of the most popular was the new model “Lee-Enfield Mk III” which emerged in 1907. They had detachable magazines and were loaded from the clips and had an arch over the magazine facilitating and accelerating the loading, which from 1908 started to be attached to other “Lee-Enfield” rifles that did not have one. In the first half of the 20th century, these were one of the most popular rifles in the world. 
(46) “Mondragon” semi-automatic rifle, calibre – 7 mm, Mexico and Switzerland, 1900s-1910s
This was the first semi-automatic rifle in the weaponry – a self-loading gun made in accordance with the 1908-model. The weapon was created in 1887 by the General Manuel Mondragón of the Mexico Army. He constructed a rifle that used to shoot in single shots, however, could automatically reload after each shot. The operation of the rifle was based on the take-away of gunpowder gas from the barrel channel. As long as there were cartridges, the weapon could start automatically. The rifle designed by Mondragón was a major novelty. The Mexicans, having no opportunities for a massive production of these rifles in their own country, applied to the Swiss company SIG and it agreed to take the order. As the Mexicans could not pay for the entire order, company SIG sold some weapons to Germany. There is some information that a small quantity of these guns was also in the disposition of the Lithuanian Army.
(47) “Mosin-Nagant” sniper rifle with a PU telescopic sight, calibre – 7.62 mm, USSR, 1944 
In the inter-war period, when the Soviet Union and Germany cooperated in the military area, the Soviets were handed over the samples of the German telescopic sights that were used for the manufacture of sights for the Red Army. In 1931, the Soviet snipers started to be equipped with the new version of “Mosin-Nagant” rifle. The weapon had an ordinary bolt action “Mosin-Nagant” system mechanism and a magazine for five cartridges. It was different from the Model 1891/1930 infantry rifles in that it had a telescopic sight, a bent-down and not straight bolt handle and a carefully processed barrel channel. Initially, the sniper rifles were provided with four-times magnifying PT and PE telescopic sights that were fitted to the rifle with the mounts of the construction of Alexandr Smirnskyj. Since 1942, the sniper rifles “Mosin-Nagant” started to use the PU telescopic sight designed for automatic rifles SVT-40. This telescopic sight was easy to manufacture and use and had the same technical characteristics as the previous sights.  
(48) “Colt” revolver, calibre - 11.43 mm, the United States of America, 1917-1920
Involved in the First World War, the Americans already had “Colt” semi-automatic pistols of the 1911-model, however, there were not enough guns for the army. It was decided to compensate the shortage with the revolvers by adapting them to shoot with the cartridges of the semi-automatic pistol meeting the needs of the army. After equalising the calibre, the so-called 1917-model revolver was launched the manufacture of which was pursued by “Colt” and “Smith & Wesson” companies. The revolver was loaded from the two clips with three cartridges in each. This gun had a very long history of usage. These revolvers were used by the units of the US Army participating in the Second World War as well as in the Korean and Vietnam Wars. Revolvers of 1917-model appeared in the commercial trade, therefore, they were used by the police, other services as well as the civilians. 
(49) “Roth-Steyr” semi-automatic pistol, calibre – 8 mm, Austria-Hungary, 1900s – 1910s 
In the last decade of the 20th century, the pistols with automated mechanism by using the energy of the gunpowder gas started to be manufactured in Austria-Hungary. Among several different systems, the pistol created by the Czech constructor Karel Krnka was an exclusive model and met the needs of the army of that time. In the last decade of the 20th century, the Austrian weapon manufacturer Georg Roth was ordered to remake a previous version of pistol “Roth-Theodorovic” of Croatian constructor Wasa Theodorovic. When using the pistols of previous models with cock, the pistol could shot in itself in case the horse pulled or was scared.  The mechanism of the new pistol did not cause any danger to its user. In 1906, Krnka pistol, known as “Roth-Krnka”, won the competition for the equipment of the army of Austria-Hungary and in the end of 1907, by the order of the Emperor Franz Joseph I, it became the official weapon of the army. Its production was started in the former gun factory in Steyr town, therefore, the pistol started to be called the “Roth-Steyr”. 
And now let us move to the display case containing helmets. Here is the exposition of the 4 helmets marked by audio guide numbers. 
(50) “Adrian” steel helmet, France, 1910s – 1920s
This helmet was designed by General Intendant August Louis Adrian of the French Army.  At the outbreak of World War I, the soldiers of the French Army wore the standard kepi (caps). At the end of 1914, due to a high rate of mortality of those injured by the fragments, the army was provided with cavalry helmets – steel protection aid, which covered only the upper part of the head. It was not very effective, thus, the General Adrian created an improved form of the helmet. It was composed of a hemisphere-shaped base with a fixed edge. A peak was formed at the front and a neck protection at the end. The helmet was of the thickness of 0.7 mm and weighed only 760 g, however, compared with previous aids, it provided a greater protection against the stones, fragments and shrapnels thrown in case of explosion. Adrian helmet was the first ballistic helmet that emerged during the First World War. 
(51) “Brodie” MkI steel helmet, Great Britain, 1937 
In 1915, after the emergence of the first modern “Adrian” steel helmet, the leaders of the British Army decided to provide their soldiers with proper protection means. In the same year, the British acquired a certain amount of French helmets. After the performed tests, it was decided to seek for a version of their own helmet. In the mid-1915, the helmet of John Leopold Brodie was patented. Since 1915, it was produced of a solid manganese steel slab, thus, the resistance to shrapnel surpassed the French helmet. It weighed 780 g, the form and construction reminded of the helmets used in the Middle Ages – “the kettle hats”.  The helmet of such form protected not only the head, but also the shoulders against the shrapnel.  In 1916, the Brodie helmet provided with the new construction liner was attributed the marking MKI. Same as French “Adrian” helmets, “Brodie” helmets became popular in the entire world. In 1940, Lithuania was planning to produce these helmets and provide its own army, however, the plans were interrupted by the Soviet occupation. 
(52) “M16” steel helmet, Germany, 1910s – 1920s 
This helmet replaced the leather and in certain cases steel helmet “Pickelhaube” worn since the first half of the 19th century. The new steel helmet M16 of the German Army was created by the war medic, surgeon, who knew about the situation in the Western Front, Professor August Bier, and Professor Friedrich Schwerd of the Hannover Technical Institute. When working with injured soldiers, Bier noticed that many of them suffered head injuries by the fragments of shrapnel bullets. He recommended the soldiers to wear a helmet to protect the skull and the neck. Schwerd, who served as a captain in the front, found a technical solution how to realise the Professor’s recommendation. The first helmets of the new model weighed approximately 1.30 kilograms. They were produced of the superior quality steel, the top side contained horn-shaped tubes for ventilation and fixation of additional armour forehead plate. Improved helmets were used in the armies of Austria-Hungary, Bulgaria, Turkey and later in Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia until the very 1930s. 
(53) Kevlar helmet PASGT, the United States of America, 1990s 
This is the main ballistic helmet used by the armed forces of the United States of America. During the Cold War period, they started the tests for the design of a helmet of a special resistance material. This material became the Kevlar invented by American company “DuPont” in 1965. It is a para-amid synthetic fibre that is five times stronger than steel due to special properties of the composing molecules and links between them. Despite this, however, the bullets still managed to overcome this substance. The US solders named this helmet the “Fritz” due to its historical resemblance to previous steel helmets of the German Army.  
The next display case contains several cold weapons.
(54) Model 1854 spike quadrangle bayonet, Austria-Hungary, the second half of the 19th century
This bayonet of the 1854-model was designed for 1854 and 1863-model rifles “Lorenz” and 1854, 1867, 1863 and 1867-model rifles “Wanzl”. This was the next-to-last needle bayonet of Austria-Hungary State, which was used with the 1858-model Bavarian rifle “Podewils”. The bayonets of this model were exported to the United States during the America Civil War. The bayonet was fitted on the barrel by passing the bead through the cutting located inside the clutch and accordingly turning the blocking ring.   
(55) Model 1913 sword bayonet, the United States of America, 1916
The exhibited sword bayonet is the Model 1913 designed for the British and Canadian rifle “Ross-Enfield”. When fitted to the gun, the bayonet is placed on the lug through the channel at the end of the handle and placed on the barrel through the cross ring. The bayonet is fitted on the rifle by using the fixer on the handle. This fixer is characteristic to bayonet of “Mauser” rifles. 
(56) Bear spear, Caucasus, the 17th – 18th century 
A bear spear was a spear with a wide, leave-shaped head and a shaft of the length of 2 m. In the Middle Ages, this lance spear was used to hunt large animals, for example, bears. However, it soon became a combat weapon, which was used by the infantry and cavalry. Bear spear, known as rogatyna, was widely used in Moscow State, Poland and Lithuania. From the 16th to the 18th century, a bear spear was an important part of the weaponry of Cassocks and especially petyhores in the Lithuanian Army. 
(57) Halberd of trabants or bodyguards, Holy Roman Empire, the late 16th century – early 17th century 
Halberd is a staff weapon – synthesis of an axe, spear and a hook used in the war. Emergence of halberds is related to the improvement of plate armour as their breaking was not always possible by swords and other previous weapons. Halberd became a weapon with a higher power. It could be used for thrusting as a spear by using long stem for powerful cutting hits and the hook on the other side was used to pull the rider from the horse. Swiss infantry was the first to use the halberds. This was an effective weapon, thus, it became popular in the entire Europe. 
The exhibited weapon is decorated with vegetative ornaments and illustrations of animals formed in the chemical way.  The remains of golden colour fringe are visible near the sleeve. In the 17th – 18th century, the halberds were still used in the army. During this period, this was the weapon of the ruler’s guard, army soldiers and sergeants as well as a distinctive symbol of certain positions.  
(58) Parade partisan, Bavaria, the 17th – 18th century 
A partisan is a spear with a head with double-edged blade and symmetrical wings on the sides or without them. Its name derived from the Italian word “partigiano” – partisan, member of the group. In the 15th century, partisans were used in Italy and in the 16th century they became popular in the units of German Landsknechts.  In the 16th – 17th century, in the majority of European countries, the partisan was a weapon of the officers in infantry units. At that time, due to the dominance of representative functions, the surface of partisan heads was decorated with coats of arms and numbers, the heads had symmetrical wings and a fringe was fitted to the bottom of the sleeve. The aforementioned purpose of use of partisan remained in the 18th century. In certain countries, they were used even in the early 19th century. 
The surface of the head of this partisan is decorated with military composition “armature” formed by chemical corrosion and engraving. The Bavarian coat of arms – 2 lions and 2 fields of the chess board patters in the shield with the crown – is illustrated in the centre of the wings. 
In the last hall, we invite you to explore the exposition “Anti-Nazi and Anti-Soviet Resistance in Lithuania in 1941-1956”. Let us stop by the exhibit number 59 – the motorcycle.
(59) Motorcycle “Harley-Davidson”, 1938
This motorcycle belonged to the chairman of the Lithuanian Motorcycle Club, the champion of the national Olympics “Around Lithuania” – Antanas Juozas Ilgauskas. He also participated in the European Rally in Berlin. The motorcycle was assembled of several separate models of “Harley-Davidson” motorcycles. 
As a member of the Lithuanian Activists Front, Antanas Juozas Ilgauskas used to carry guns with this motorcycle for the participants of the June Uprising in Kaunas (1941). After the second Soviet occupation, he was convicted and imprisoned at Vorcuta Gulag in 1945-1953. 
On the right corner of this hall is the exposition of the crosses of Lithuanian exile graves. One of them is object number 60. 
(60) Wooden cross, the midst of the 20th century
During the occupation era, the Soviet government performed the physical and spiritual genocide of the Lithuanian residents. The families of intelligentsia, soldiers and those resisting the system were massively exiled to the most distant places of Russia and imprisoned in the concentration camps.  Inhumane working conditions, starvation and a change of climate had a negative influence on the health of state prisoners and exiles.  However, even under the most unfavourable conditions, the Lithuanians stills followed the burial traditions: a place of the eternal rest of the deceased was fenced and a cross was fitted by the grave. 
This wooden cross was brought from the expedition of 1989 from the Lithuanian exile graveyard in Ingarka.
The exposition halls of the Vytautas the Great War Museum sort of end by the memorial crypt in the first floor of the museum that we recommend to see for each visitor of our museum.  
Thank you for visiting our museum! You can explore the expositions and exhibitions of the museum in detail individually. See you next time!
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